UNITED
NATIONS C R C

\‘:\\ﬁ/ Convention on the D ERAL
72  Rights of the Child CRC/ O SR 561

28 Septenber 1999

Original: ENGLISH

COW TTEE ON THE RI GHTS OF THE CHI LD
Twent y- second session
SUMVARY RECORD OF THE 561st MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Tuesday, 21 Septenber 1999, at 3 p.m

Chai rperson: Ms. MO
CONTENTS
CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS BY STATES PARTI ES (conti nued)

Initial report of Venezuela (continued)

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submtted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the O ficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Pal ais des Nations, Ceneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public neetings of the Conmittee
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued
shortly after the end of the session

GE. 99- 44270 (E)



CRC/ C/ SR. 561
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 3.05 p.m

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS BY STATES PARTIES (agenda item 4) (continued)

Initial report of Venezuela (continued) [CRC/ C/3/Add.54; CRC/ C/ 3/ Add.59;
HR1/ CORE/ 1/ Add. 3; CRC/C QVEN 1 (list of issues); Witten replies of
the Governnent of Venezuela to questions raised in the list of issues
(docunent with no synbol distributed in the neeting roomin Spanish

only)]

1. At the invitation of the Chairperson, the menbers of the del egation of
Venezuel a resuned their places at the Conmttee table.

2. The CHAI RPERSON invited the acting head of del egation, M. Mchelena, to
answer the Committee's questions 21 to 26 (CRC/C/ Q VEN 1).

3. M. M CHELENA (Venezuel a) apol ogi zed for the absence of

Anbassador Rodriguez Cedefio, who had been del ayed. Replying to the
Committee's questions, he said that the Project for Sustainable Devel opnent of
the South (Proyecto de Desarollo Sustentable del Sur), in a report published
in 1994 evaluating the situation in the border regions, had found that basic
servi ces such as housing, health, education and comuni cati ons had been very
poor there on account of the lack of financial and technol ogical resources.
Probl ems al so arose in relation to land tenure. Although border areas
accounted for nmore than half of the national territory, inherent problens such
as prostitution, smuggling, drug trafficking, guerrilla activity originating
in Colonbia and illegal mning reflected institutional weakness and the
State's inability to exercise proper control. In view of the current trend
towards gl obalization, there was a need to establish a long-term State
strategy under the coordination of the National Border Council with the
support of the arnmed forces.

4, Very little informati on was avail abl e regardi ng the health of

adol escents and the del egati on woul d have to base its remarks chiefly on the
data concerning teenage pregnancy. Although the fertility rate had been
constantly decreasing over the |ast decades, adol escent fertility stil
accounted for a considerable proportion of the total. The high |evels of

t eenage pregnancy only served to exacerbate poverty. Mst of the young women
in the “unsatisfied basic needs” category who had had sexual experience had
given birth. \What was nore, over 80 per cent of teenage nothers who had

al ready borne one child expressed the intention of having nore children. For
every 1,000 cases of sexually transmtted di seases, 134 occurred anong

12-18 year olds. Child birth conplications were the third nost frequent cause
of adol escent deaths and the child nortality rate was a third higher in the
cases of children born to nmothers under 20 years of age.

5. As far as education was concerned, about 50 per cent of nore affl uent
young people up to 24 years of age attended an educational institution on

a regular basis. However, the percentage fell to 35 per cent in the

“unsati sfied basic needs” category. A significant proportion of teenage

nmot hers did not conplete basic education and out of every 10 who had had a
child, only one remained in the educati onal system The break-up of famlies
and the increasing number of single-parent famlies were increasingly serious



CRC/ C/ SR. 561
page 3

problems in Venezuela. Wonen were often the heads of single-parent
househol ds, yet they earned far |less than their male counterparts.

6. Replying to questions 24 to 26, he underscored the fundanmental role of
the famly in children's education. Geat care was being taken by the
Government to expand classroomlibraries in both rural and urban schools. At
all levels of official education, priority was being shifted to the rural
border and indi genous sectors. The Governnent had al so established a strategy
for strengthening higher education to achieve greater efficiency, quality,
productivity and sel f-managenent. A |larger nunber of students with specia
educati onal needs had been integrated into the nainstream educationa
programme. To neet the demands of the oil sector in particular, the Nationa
Institute for Educati on Cooperation (INCE) had | aunched a programme to train
human resources in line with the industry's requirenents in cooperation with
the International Centre for Education and Devel opnent. Government measures
i ncluded efforts to make use of nodern technologies to prompte children's
rights, including sexual and reproductive rights.

7. The CHAI RPERSON invited the Cormittee nenbers to pose additiona
guestions on the areas just covered as well as on civil rights and freedons
and famly environnent and alternative care.

8. M. DOEK thanked the del egation for the detailed information provided on
health, especially with regard to teenage pregnancy. However, considering the
gl oony picture that had been painted, what did the Government intend to do to
i nprove the situation? How did the Governnent plan to i nprove access to
health services for rural and indi genous popul ations? There also seenmed to be
difficulty maintaining the schedul e of imunization programres.

9. Turning to the question of the provision of health care for the children
of contributing workers, he expressed concern for the fate of the remaining
60 per cent of children, especially in view of the dismantling of the
Venezuel an Social Security Institute (IVSS) and the privatization of the
sector. He further questioned the inbalance in the budgetary allocation for
education, half of which was earmarked for the universities. Considering that
only a third of students continued their education after elementary |level, it
appeared that the majority did not benefit proportionately fromthe education
budget. What renedy did the Government propose in that respect? Also, in
view of the | arge number of teacher training institutions that had been

cl osed, he wondered whether the Government had any plans to inmprove the
quality of teaching, since it was inportant to have qualified teachers at the
el ementary |evel.

10. M s. SARDENBERG poi nted out that the issues being discussed in the
Committee could be taken into account within the context of the country's
constitutional reforns, especially of the social chapter. Supporting M. Doek
on the budgetary issue, she noted that the Conmttee would prefer States to
identify child-welfare issues in their budgets. The Governnent shoul d pay
urgent attention to the cases of undocunented children who were unable to
conpl ete their schooling.

11. Ms. EL GU NDI, later supported by Ms. Quedraogo, inquired about the
status of the breast m |k pronotion programre. Furthernore, what neasures




CRC/ ¢/ SR. 561
page 4

were being taken to inprove the | egal renedies open to wonmen who were victins
of donestic violence, and what was being done to change general attitudes
towards that problenf

12. Ms. OUEDRAOGO, recalling that 11 of the country's 160 maternity
hospitals were reportedly “baby-friendly”, asked whether the Governnent

i ntended to inprove that nunber in view of the high incidence of teenage
pregnancies. Referring to the transformation of the Food Al |l owance Programre
into the Fam |y Subsidy Programre, she wondered what progress had been nade
and what neasures had been taken to ensure that children really benefited
fromthe programme. Alluding to paragraph 172 of the country's report
(CRC/ C/ 3/ Add. 54) and the downward trend in primary education coverage, she
wonder ed what plans had been put in place to inprove efficiency and to find an
appropriate solution to the problem Wat was the status of the new plan of
action in education policy and how did it fit into the context of the Nationa
Educati onal Commitnment presented by the National Council on Education?
Lastly, were children allowed to participate in decisions relating to their
education, at the administrative and classroom | evel s?

13. Ms. KARP said that she was aware that the Mnistry of Education had
adopted a programre to incorporate human rights into school curricula, and
asked how it had advanced. Had any eval uati on been done, or any specific
materi al been distributed? Had teaching staff been trained in the teaching of
human rights, which could not be done using traditional nmethods? There had
been a programe to bring the education systeminto line with United Nations
standards. What was the status of that programre, and had it been subject to
any evaluation? She would also Iike to know whether corporal puni shnent was
prohibited in schools and in the juvenile justice system and if so, what
practical measures had been taken against it. WAs there any nove in Venezuel a
to combat corporal punishnment in the family? Had the authorities taken steps
to encourage alternative neasures, for exanple through parents' schools and
hotlines or other canpaigns?

14. Ms. OUEDRAOGO asked, in the light of the high nunber of teen
pregnanci es, whet her adol escent nothers were afforded the opportunity to
continue their education. She inquired as to what sort of treatnent was
reserved in the education systemfor children with |earning disabilities,
and if any nmeasures had been taken to reduce the disparity between education
standards in rural and urban areas. The press had reported that the
Governnment had cl osed 134 schools in 1996 and the first half of 1997 for
security reasons or because of poor performance. Had those schools since
reopened? |If not, what solution had been found for pupils who had attended
those establishnments?

15. Ms. TIGERSTEDT- TAHTELA noted that the country was facing an economic
recession, while the standard of living had fallen and the education and
heal th systenms had deteriorated in the last 10 years. She asked to what
extent the Governnent would, in such conditions, be able to inplenent Agenda
Venezuel a, which put forward sone very anbitious programes in the socia
sphere. What were the prospects for the econony? Did the Government work
with multilateral or bilateral aid programmes to inprove the country's
econom ¢ out | ook?




CRC/ C/ SR. 561
page 5

16. M. M CHELENA (Venezuel a) said the Governnment considered the question of
t eenage pregnancy to be of prime inportance. To deal with that problemthe

M nistry of Health and Social Welfare had been working, through the Comm ssion
for the Prevention of Early Pregnancy on a national five-year progranme
scheduled to begin in 1999. The ains were to strengthen the 24 regiona

conmmi ssions working to forestall teenage pregnancy and to ensure that a

nati onal |egal framework for that question would be established during the
adm nistrative reform of the executive branch.

17. Three heal th-care services coexisted in Venezuela: a private system
a public one which was free of charge, and a third which was provided by

the social security systemw th funding fromworkers and enpl oyers. The
Government was restructuring the social security systemand the health
services, and a proposal to create a single health system was under
consideration. In theory, children and famlies not covered by the socia
security systemwere able to receive care through the Mnistry of Health and
Social Welfare's public hospitals, which were free, for both outpatient and
i n-patient care. Those facilities had, however, been severely affected by
budget cut backs.

18. A special effort was being nade to support prinmary education, for
exanpl e through the construction of new schools as part of the plan for the
year 2000. In 1999, approximtely 500 primary schools had opened. The State
was facilitating access to university courses for primary, secondary and

uni versity teaching staff. The Governnment had taken steps to ensure that no
children woul d be excluded fromthe school system for exanple by issuing a
decree in 1998 all owi ng undocunented chil dren access to public secondary
establishnments (coleqgios). As for food and assistance programes for children
provi ded through their famlies or their schools, the Government had, with the
assi stance of the Inter-Anerican Devel opment Bank, the International Mnetary
Fund and the World Bank, inplenented programmes to attenuate the effects of
structural adjustnment on vul nerabl e groups, and on children in particular

19. M . RODRI GUEZ CEDENO (Venezuel a) said that despite the budgetary
constraints it faced, the Governnment had sold public property to finance the
repair, renovation and refurbi shnment of schools, many of which had been |eft
in a state of disrepair. Over and above the 500 schools opened in 1999,
resources had been allocated for a |large nunber of nobile facilities

(ambul atori os). Breastfeeding was a recognized right ensured under Venezuel an
| abour | aw. Venezuela had taken part actively in the recent work of the

I nternational Labour Conference on the adoption of a revised Maternity
Protecti on Convention, and was attenpting to include sone of its provisions in
nati onal |aws and regulations. Apart fromhuman rights instruction in

M ni stry of Defence officer training programres, human rights, including the
rights of the child, had al so been incorporated in specific programes for
secondary schools. The Government would try to ensure that human rights, the
protection of the person, international humanitarian | aw and refugee | aw woul d
be covered in future programes.

20. As was the case with nost devel opi ng countries, Venezuela had suffered
fromthe negative effects of globalization, structural adjustment and externa
debt. The Government was seeking to place the human person at the centre of
devel opnent and of all aspects of economic life in the country. The econony



CRC/ C/ SR. 561
page 6

was very dependent on oil production, and the recent increase in oil prices
fromUS$ 7 to nearly US$ 20 had brought welcone relief. As in any country
undergoi ng political restructuring, foreign investnment had naturally

sl ackened, but there were signs that it was reviving and it was hoped that it
woul d increase in the com ng years.

21. A national council was responsible for inplenenting an anti-drugs
programe at schools and ot her educational establishnents and for explaining
the hazards of drug use and drug trafficking, alongside other public and
private campaigns. The dangers of drug use were regul arly explained at
school s.

22. The fact that human rights had been included in school curricula was in
itself a step forward. The national teacher training school included courses
in human rights, international humanitarian |aw and refugee | aw, albeit at a
basic level. It would be difficult, a mere three years after the introduction
of such subjects in the curricula, for any country to evaluate the resulting

i npact, and all the nore so a devel opi ng country such as Venezuela. As far as
he knew, no eval uati on was pl anned.

23. Referring to the section of the list of issues (CRC/C/ QVEN 1) on
speci al protection neasures and specifically to questions 27, 28 and 30, he
said that Venezuela was a party to the 1967 Protocol relating to the Status of
Refugees, and that the right to asylumwas recognized as a human right. An
inter-institutional technical commttee had recently been established not only
to consider the problem of refugees and displ aced persons but also to set up a
| egal mechani sm for the consideration of asylumrequests. One of the main
thrusts of its work would no doubt be the protection of vul nerable groups,

i ncluding children, and especially unacconpani ed m nors. Venezuela had not
received refugees in the strictly |legal sense as established by the 1967

Pr ot ocol

24, There was no conflict zone between Venezuel a and Col ombi a, but rather a
certain situation which affected the security of people living in the border
regi ons of both countries. There were no counter-insurgency operations or
mlitary clashes on Venezuelan territory, although certain security problens
had ari sen.

25. The econom c exploitation of children was a major scourge throughout the
devel opi ng world, and Venezuel a was no exception. The Mnistries of Labour
Soci al Devel opnment and the Family were, along with other institutions,

i mpl enenting a progranme for the elimnation of the nost hazardous forns of
child labour. Venezuela had concluded an agreenent in that respect with the
I nternational Programme on the Elimnation of Child Labour (I1PEC), an

I nternational Labour Organization programre funded through vol untary
contributions fromthe Governnents of Spain, the United States and ot her
sources. Children were concentrated in the informal sector in certain regions
in Venezuela. |PEC and the Governnent had been in contact since 1998, and
there was a possibility that the Governnment would receive funds in support of
nati onal progranmes agai nst child | abour

26. The CHAI RPERSON invited the menmbers of the Committee to ask questions
relating to special protection measures.




CRC/ C/ SR. 561
page 7

27. M . RABAH requested details concerning the eradication of child |abour,
in the framework of the 1996 menmorandum of understandi ng signed by the

I nternational Labour Organization and the Venezuel an Government, and call ed
for statistics on the practical inplenentation of |ILO Convention 138
concerning the mnimum age for adm ssion to enploynent. He al so requested

di saggregated statistics on juvenile offenders, detention centres and the

i ncidence of their detention al ongside other offenders, and asked about what
| egal assistance was provided and the rel ationship between the centres and
parents.

28. Ms. EL GUINDI noted that Venezuelan m nors were often detained in
identical conditions to adults, without regard to their status and rights.
She al so sought an expl anation of the provision in the Penal Code whereby
rapi sts went unpunished if they subsequently married their victim which
contradicted all basic human rights.

29. M. DOEK, referring to the survey on working children conducted by the
National Children's Institute (I NAM, asked whether the basic problemwth

i mpl enentation of the ILO|IPEC programe was financial, and whether it focused
on children under 14 or other targets. The Committee needed nore information
on the status of Venezuela's plan and on steps being taken to ratify the new

I LO Convention 182 on the Wrst Forms of Child Labour

30. VWhile INAM data on the juvenile justice systemincluded specific figures
on child detainees, he wondered by what process the children arrived in
detention centres. For instance, under the Mnors Protection Act (MPA), the
courts could apparently take the decision to place children in such centres,
even with other offenders of 18 and over. WAs that a penalty stipul ated by
the MPA? He al so requested data specific to detention centres, as opposed to
treatment and other non-punitive centres. How did the system work? What was
the courts' role under the MPA in dealing with juvenile offenders?

31. Ms. SARDENBERG stressed how important it was for Venezuel a s adoption
systemto be brought into line with all the principles enshrined in the Hague
Convention on Protection of Children and Cooperation in Respect of
Intercountry Adoption, in the light of its ratification. One topic that bore
further exam nation was the fact that the central authority responsible for
child protection (INAM was al so responsi bl e for adoption. Another was the
fact that judges could hand children over directly, even for internationa
adoption. She al so reconmended that human rights should be introduced not
only in regular school and university curricula, but also in those of training
schools for the security forces, so as to equip themto apply the new O ganic
Law shortly to be enacted. G eater international cooperation with

United Nations agenci es and national and international non-governnenta

organi zati ons (NGOs) could help solve certain problenms, such as those caused
by the frequent crossing of Col onbians into Venezuela for political reasons,
given the lack of pertinent national |egislation. Since paragraph 192 of
Venezuel a's suppl ementary report (CRC/ C/ 3/ Add.59), which dealt with sexua
expl oi tati on, acknow edged the lack of rigorous qualitative or quantitative
research, she suggested that a study be conducted in order to clarify a
situation in which many taboos persisted and fam |y nenbers were all too often
i nvol ved.




CRC/ C/ SR. 561
page 8

32. Ms. KARP, endorsing previous questions concerning the juvenile justice
system wondered what the statenent that under-18s were not crimnally
responsi ble really signified. True they could not be formally punished, but
how were they actually treated by the authorities? |f detained, they were
placed in centres, w thout due process of |aw, which was tantanount to

i mprisonment. WAs different treatnment envisaged under the new Code of
Crimnal Procedure so that children could enjoy the sanme rights as adults in
the crimnal justice systen? Since the programre for children with specia
needs in I NAM centres had suffered on account of declining budgetary and ot her
assi stance, what was being done to encourage suitable treatnent for such
children? Detention was currently subject to a three-nonth discretionary
extension, without the child appearing before a judge; the Commttee therefore
needed nmuch nore information about the new | egislation governing the juvenile
justice system

33. On the subject of child | abour, while applauding the ratification of |ILO
Convention 138, she wished to know, given the dissolution of the department in
the Mnistry of Labour formerly responsible for inspection, which body
currently conducted inspections, whether violators were brought to trial, and
exactly how I LO Convention 138 was being inplenmented. 1In view of reports of
the existence of child trafficking and sexual abuse in INAM she would |ike

i nformati on on nonitoring procedures to be included in the witten replies.

34. M . RODRI GUEZ CEDENO (Venezuela), replying to M. Doek’s question, said
that while funds were available for inplenenting the |IPEC progranme, the
process was being revised, which had brought some projects to a standstill.

A national canpai gn was underway progressively to eradicate paid | abour by
chil dren under 12, dangerous work, and enpl oynent that inpeded schoo
attendance. The programme had been set up in 1995 and | aunched in 1997; it

i nvol ved the Central Coordination and Planning Office of the Ofice of the
Presi dent of the Republic (CORDI PLAN), civil society, NGO and sone enpl oyers’
associ ations, and covered health, education, |abour, famly and yout h.

35. Replying to Ms. Sardenberg’ s question concerning refugees crossing the
country’s international borders, he said that Venezuela respected its

i nternational commtnments. The executive commttee, which he chaired, had
recently initiated dialogue with the Governnments involved. The idea was not
to set up new nuclei of refugees, but to provide transit and tenporary
protection and pronote voluntary repatriation in safe conditions.

36. In reply to question 32 on the |list of issues, he said that policies and
programes had been devised to combat sexual exploitation and to stiffen

penal ties. Such programes included sexual and reproductive health, covering
sexual ly transmitted di seases (STDs), HI V-AIDS, sexual abuse and exploitation
psychol ogi cal gui dance for parents, and preparation for notherhood.

37. He thanked Conmittee nenbers for their questions, since one of the
treaty bodies’ tasks was to encourage countries to bring their measures into
line with their international commtnents. He would transmt their coments
to his Government and reply in witing by Cctober. While reaffirmng his
Government’s will to conply with the Convention, he explained that the country
was experiencing a positive but difficult transition process.



CRC/ C/ SR. 561
page 9

38. Ms. SARDENBERG suggested that when reporting to the Cormittee on its
institutional structures, the delegation should furnish information as to

whet her the Organic Law i ncluded the adm nistration of juvenile justice, or
whet her Venezuel a had ot her plans for addressing the problem of untenable
conditions in detention centres. It transpired that children in conflict with
the I aw were al so often poor or abandoned, and it was vital that political and
strategi c support be forthcomng to protect those at risk. Venezuela was
currently in a situation where many things were being called into question

The Convention on the Rights of the Child could be useful as an instrunent
that placed children in the forefront of the country’ s concerns.

39. The CHAI RPERSON said that since the Cormittee's mandate covered al
children’s rights, which were indivisible, she suggested that the del egation
submt all its replies together in witing when it was in a position to do so.

40. M . RODRI GUEZ CEDENO ( Venezuel a) concurr ed.

41. At the suggestion of the CHAI RPERSON, discussion of the prelimnary
observations and concluding remarks on the report of Venezuel a was post poned.

42. The CHAI RPERSON t hanked the del egation for its replies to Conmittee
menber s, whose detail ed questions attested to concern for Venezuel an chil dren
and transmtted her best wi shes to the First Lady, who had been unable to
attend. She hoped that, with international support, the country woul d neet
its goal of healthy devel opment of the child.

The neeting rose at 5.15 p.m




